
SOUTH HAVEN CITY HALL IS BARRIER FREE AND THE CITY OF SOUTH HAVEN WILL PROVIDE 
THE NECESSARY REASONABLE AUXILIARY AIDS AND SERVICES FOR PERSONS WITH 
DISABILITIES, SUCH AS SIGNERS FOR THE HEARING IMPAIRED AND AUDIO TAPES OF PRINTED 
MATERIALS BEING CONSIDERED AT THE MEETING TO INDIVIDUALS WITH DISABILITIES AT THE 
MEETING UPON SEVEN (7) DAYS NOTICE TO THE SOUTH HAVEN CITY HALL.    
 

Local Development Finance Authority 
 

 
Regular Meeting Agenda 
 
Monday, April 14, 2014 
4:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
South Haven City Hall 

                                             City of South Haven      
 

 
 
1. Call to Order 

 

2. Roll Call 
 

Chairman Art Bolt, Thomas Erdmann, Eugen Gawreliuk, Mike Henry, Robert Herrera, Lynn 
Kerber, Andy Klavins, Mike Rainey, Christine Valentine, Janice Varney. 

 
3. Approval of Agenda 

 
4. Approval of Minutes –  March 10, 2014 Regular Meeting 
 
5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
6. Financial Report 
 
7.   220 Aylworth Avenue Offer  
 
8.   Economic Development Report 
 
10.  General Comments 
 
11.  Executive Session 
 
The Local Development Finance Authority will move to a closed session under Section 8(d) of the Open 
Meetings Act to discuss a potential real estate acquisition. 

 
12.  Adjourn 
 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
Paul VandenBosch 
Secretary, Local Development Finance Authority 



1 
 

Local Development Finance Authority 
 

 
Regular Meeting Minutes 
 
Monday, March 10, 2014 
4:00 p.m., Council Chambers 
South Haven City Hall 

                                             City of South Haven      
 

 
 
1. Call to Order by Valentine at 4:00 p.m. 

 

2. Roll Call 
 

Present: Erdmann, Gawreliuk, Henry, Kerber, Klavins, Valentine, Varney,  
 

Absent:  Bolt, Herrera, Rainey 
 
3. Approval of Agenda 
 

Motion by Klavins, second by Henry to approve the agenda with the additional item Dual 
Agency Agreement. 

All in favor. Motion carried. 

4. Approval of Minutes –  November 13, 2013 Regular Meeting 
 

Motion by Henry, second by Erdmann to approve the November 13, 2013  

Regular Meeting minutes. 

All in favor. Motion carried. 

5. Interested Citizens in the Audience Will be Heard on Items Not on the Agenda 
 
 None at this time. 
 
6. Financial Report 
 
 VandenBosch reviewed the Financial Report. 
 
 Motion by Erdmann, second by Klavins to accept the Financial Report. 
 
 All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
 
 
 



2 
 

7.  2014-2015 Budget 
 

VandenBosch presented the draft budget and noted two capital projects for the upcoming 
budget year, Kalamazoo Street reconstruction and Veterans Boulevard Water Tower 
Painting.  The General Fund Administration Transfer has been increased to $25,000 from 
the current budget year.  It had been $40,000 in previous years but due to lower revenues, 
the General Fund Transfer had been reduced to $0 in fiscal year 2013-2014.  The projection 
for the General Fund Transfer is to increase it to $40,000 again if revenues allow. 

Kerber asked why no Other Revenue was included for LDFA 3, when it was included in the 
other districts.  VandenBosch was not able to explain this. 

There was a discussion on remaining land owned by the LDFA which could be sold for 
industrial development.   VandenBosch stated that the land we have available are the 220 
Aylworth site, the Du-Wel site and the Four Star site.  The LDFA does not own developable 
land in the I-196 Industrial Park.  The LDFA had considered developing an additional 
industrial park, however budget issues have put a hold on that. 

Valentine asked if the LDFA sells 220 Aylworth, would that show an increase in the fund 
balance.  VandenBosch said yes, it would increase the fund balance in LDFA 1. 

Kerber recommended that we discuss strategy in a future LDFA meeting. 

Motion by Erdman, second by Klavins to approve the 2014-2015 LDFA budget. 

All in favor. Motion carried. 

 
8.  Dual Agency Agreement 
 

VandenBosch explained that the realtor representing the LDFA on 220 Aylworth Ave. is 
working with a buyer who is also being represented by Bradley Company.  The Dual Agency 
Agreement is a disclosure that the realtors are working with both the buyer and the seller on 
the transaction.  VandenBosch stated that he had discussed the agreement with the City 
Attorney and had no concerns with the agreement.  

Motion by Henry, second by Gawreliuk to authorize Vice-Chairman Valentine to sign the 
Dual Agency Agreement. 

All in favor. Motion carried. 
 
9.  Economic Development Report 
 
 McCloughan gave a report on economic development activities. 
 
10.  General Comments 
 
 There were none. 

 
11.  Adjourn 
 
 Motion by Erdmann, second by Henry to adjourn at 4:45 p.m.            
 
 All in favor. Motion carried. 
 



3 
 

 
RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED, 
 
 
Paul VandenBosch 
Secretary 



LDFA #1 LDFA #2 LDFA #3
Revenues

Property Tax Captures 224,479                       32,024                          67,288                           
Interest Income 4,453                           1,275                            4,300                             
Land Sales -                                
Other Revenue 150                              -                                -                                
Other Transfers In -                               -                                -                                
Total Revenue 229,082                       33,299                          71,588                           

Expenditures
Economic Liaison 210                              -                                426                                
Administrative Costs -                               -                                -                                
Professional Fees 3,852                           63                                 -                                
Contractual Services 54,367                         -                                153                                
Capital Projects 8,503                           -                                -                                
General Fund Administration -                               -                                -                                
Transfer to Building Authority Debt Service -                               9,866                            -                                
MEDC Loan Payments 20,406                           
Transfer to St. Joe Project Debt Service 90,000                         -                                -                                
Other Transfers Out -                               -                                -                                
Total Expenditures 156,932                       9,928                            20,985                           

Year-to-Date Fund Gain/(Loss) 72,151                       23,370                        50,602                         

Cash and Investments
Cash 163,855                       141,177                        291,803                         
Certificates of Deposit 263,078                       -                                2,250                             
Other Financial Investments 316,739                       63,680                          308,688                         
Total 743,672                     204,857                      602,741                       

Land Assets - 345 Kalamazoo St 5.19 acres 46,710$                        Mkt Value per assessor
Land Assets - 1391 Kalamazoo St 1.54 acres 36,729$                        Mkt Value per assessor
220 Aylworth Ave 13.22 acres 118,980$                      Mkt Value per assessor
1280 Kalamazoo St. 3.48 acres 31,320$                        Mkt Value per assessor

LDFA Debt Obligations
St. Joe Projects Bonds - Final Maturity - May 2027 $120,000/Year
DPW Relocation Bonds - Final Maturity - Nov. 2021 $13,990 Average/Year
MEDC Loan -0% Interest - Final Payment - April 2016 $27,208/Year

City of South Haven
Local Development Finance Authority
For the period ended March 31, 2014



March 25, 2014

TO: LDFA

FR: Paul VandenBosch

RE: Nick Loafman Offer

The LDFA has received an offer for a portion of the 220 Aylworth property from Nick Loafman.

The offer is for a 1.95 acre parcel that includes a utility building.  The building currently has no 
water, sewer or electric utility connections.  The parcel includes frontage on Kalamazoo 
Street, and easement access to Lovejoy Avenue.  An easement would be created to allow for 
future property owners of the remaining 220 Aylworth parcel to use the Lovejoy driveway.

A lot split would be required.  The attached sketch indicates the proposed split.  A survey of 
the proposed lot would be required, and zoning approval of the split is required.  The 
proposed lot appears to meet zoning requirements.

The offer price is $25,000.



March 25, 2014

TO: LDFA

FR: Paul VandenBosch

RE: Buy and Sell Agreements, 220 Aylworth

In the past, when negotiating sales of property in industrial parks, staff and the City Attorney 
have had quite a bit of flexibility to prenegotiate property sales with developers.  We tried to 
put together purchase agreements that we could recommend to the board.  

One reason for this type of negotiation was that prospective buyers had some privacy through 
the negotiation process.  The Open Meetings Act does not allow for an executive session to 
discuss the sale of property.

Because we have entered into an agency agreement with a real estate broker, the decisions 
on property sales now have a different dynamic to them.  When the LDFA responds to a buy 
and sell agreement with a counter-offer, it is entering into an agreement that may result in a 
sale.  Because of this, it is not appropriate for staff to respond with counter offers.

Another consideration is that if the LDFA were to decide not to sell to a buyer for reasons 
such as lack of job creation, or lack of investment in the property, the LDFA might become 
liable for payment of the brokerage fee.  This would mainly apply to an offer on the entire 
property.  It is important to respond to all offers with a counter offer with a dollar value.  That 
value could be the listing price ($750,000).  It is important not to decline an offer, unless there 
is an obvious negative impact on the adjacent neighborhood.  

I intend to bring all offers on the property to the LDFA for a decision on whether to accept, or 
to counter offer.  This may lead to requests for special meetings, although I hope to be able to 
keep responses to regularly scheduled meeting dates.















1310 KALAMAZOO ST

333 LOVEJOY AVE

220 AYLWORTH AVE 1280 KALAMAZOO ST

PR
OP

OS
ED

 E
AS

EM
EN

T

71'

EXISTING EASEMENT

220 Aylworth Ave
1.95 ac.

27
5'

22
5'

221' 50
'

66'

EX
IS

TIN
G 

EA
SE

ME
NT

 FO
R 

IN
GR

ES
S,

 E
GR

ES
S 

& 
UT

ILI
TIE

S

302'

523'

KA
LA

MA
ZO

O 
ST

LOVEJOY AVE

220 Aylworth Ave - Storage Building Parcel

11/7/2013 µ

Legend
Property
City Properties
Easements
Demolished Buildings



1310 KALAMAZOO ST

333 LOVEJOY AVE

PR
OP

OS
ED

 EA
SE

ME
NT

71'

EXISTING EASEMENTStorage
1.95 ac.27

5'

22
5'

50
'

220 AYLWORTH AVE

1280 KALAMAZOO ST

Office
1.25 ac.

23
6'

231'

Pla
nn

ed
 Va

n B
ur

en
 Tr

ail 221'

EX
IS

TIN
G 

EA
SE

ME
NT

 FO
R 

IN
GR

ES
S,

 EG
RE

SS
 & 

UT
ILI

TIE
S

66'

523'

302'

KA
LA

MA
ZO

O 
ST

AYLWORTH AVE

LOVEJOY AVE

220 Aylworth Ave - Splits

11/7/2013 µ

Legend
Splits
City Properties
Easements
Demolished Buildings


	LDFA Agenda, April 14, 2014
	March 10, 2014 Minutes
	Financial Report
	220 Aylworth Ave Offer



